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Sanchez, Rodzandra (COE)

From: Perez, Martha D. (COE)

Sent: Monday, January 28, 2019 3:07 PM

To: Sanchez, Rodzandra (COE)

Subject: FW: INQ 19-06, Stephan Statlander, Transit X (Section 2-11.1(s), County Ethics Code-

Lobbying; Contingency Fees)

Attachments: INQ Statlander.docx; Transit X for Monroe County, FL Revised.pdf

From: Perez, Martha D. (COE)
Sent: Monday, January 28, 2019 3:02 PM
To: 'Stefan Statlander' <srstatlander@gmail.com>
Cc: Arrojo, Jose (COE) <Jose.Arrojo@miamidade.gov>; Murawski, Michael P. (COE)
<Michael.Murawski@miamidade.gov>; Diaz-Greco, Gilma M. (COE) <Gilma.Diaz-Greco@miamidade.gov>; Turay, Radia
(COE) <Radia.Turay@miamidade.gov>
Subject: INQ 19-06, Stephan Statlander, Transit X (Section 2-11.1(s), County Ethics Code- Lobbying; Contingency Fees)

Dear Mr. Statlander,

Thank you for contacting the Miami-Dade Commission on Ethics and Public Trust and requesting our
guidance. Attached is INQ 19-06 addressing your questions. Do not hesitate to contact me if you need further
assistance.

Best regards,

Martha D. Perez
Staff Attorney
MIAMI-DADE COUNTY COMMISSION ON ETHICS & PUBLIC TRUST
19 West Flagler St. Suite 820
Miami, FL 33130
(305)350-0656
PEREZMD@miamidade.gov
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MIAMI-DADE COMMISSION ON ETHICS AND PUBLIC TRUST

19 West Flagler Street, Suite 820 Miami, Florida 33130
Phone: (305) 579-2594 Facsimile: (305) 579-0273

Website: ethics.miamidade.gov

MEMORANDUM

TO: Stephan Statlander
Transit X, LLC

FROM: Martha D. Perez
Staff Attorney

SUBJECT:INQ 19-06 (§2-11.1(s), Prohibited Contingency Fees, Lobbying)

DATE: January 28, 2019

CC: All COE Legal Staff

Facts: You have submitted the following inquiry to our office regarding Miami-Dade
County’s Lobbying ordinance found at Section 2-11.1(s) of the County Ethics Code. First,
you ask whether an employee of a principal company who presents an unsolicited proposal
for a transportation system to the County is required to register as a lobbyist. Secondly,
you ask, in the event the principal company is awarded a contract with the County, whether
the employee/lobbyist is prohibited from receiving a performance budget or a profit-
sharing award tied to the principal’s profit.

You have included a preliminary proposal which was presented to Monroe County and
prepared by Transit X, LLC, a privately-held company headquartered in Boston, MA, for
privately-funded shared mobility service, as an example of the literature your company
sends out to counties, municipalities and developers.

Discussion: Miami-Dade County’s Lobbyist ordinance defines a lobbyist as a person who
is employed or retained by a principal “who seeks to encourage the passage, defeat, or
modification” of resolutions, ordinances, actions or decisions which will be made or will
be foreseeably heard or reviewed by the County Commission, Mayor, board or committee.

Where nothing is pending before the County board(s); no proposal has been formalized or
written; and, no issues related to these activities are currently or foreseeably pending in the
County, sending literature such as the one you have attached, without more, does not
require lobbyist registration. (INQ 15-47, INQ 12-75) However, where the intent of the



2

principal company is to present, follow up and engage in further communication with the
County to persuade or influence the County to obtain its product or service, such actions
require lobbyist registration, even if there is no solicitation pending before the government
entity. (Section 2-11.1[s], County Ethics Code)

Regarding the prohibited contingency fee arrangements, the ordinance states that, “no
person may, in whole or in part, pay, give…agree to pay or give another person…. [or]
receive or agree to receive a contingency fee. ‘Contingency fee’ means a fee, bonus,
commission, or non-monetary benefit or compensation which is dependent on or in any
way contingent on the passage, defeat or modification of [official government action].”
(Section 2-11.1[s] [(7]) While this provision does not prohibit lobbying, it restricts the form
of compensation that a principal is permitted to give, or a lobbyist is permitted to accept,
if he or she is representing the interests of the principal (lobbying) before the County or its
municipalities while protecting against any potential tendencies to corrupt the government
process which may develop when lobbyist compensation is contingent on obtaining the
desired action.

A person who is employed or retained by a principal and has been assigned to represent
the interests of that principal may lobby as long as the entire, definitive amount of
compensation related to the lobbying activities is established at the time that the person
lobbies and such amount is not dependent on the success or failure of the lobbying efforts.
(INQ 12-132). Generally, the prohibition has been applied to instances where the principal
hires an outside lobbyist or lobbying firm to represent its interests and advocate for the
award of the contract. In RQO 04-208, the Ethics Commission concluded that a principal
client may not give a lobbyist, who is also a contractor for the principal, a percentage of
the awarded contract as compensation for his successful lobbying efforts but rather, any
compensation derived from the contract must be limited to the contractor’s scope of
services (as a contractor) under the contract.

An exception has been made for employees of the principal whose duties include lobbying
on behalf of their employers. For example, the Lobbying ordinance does not prohibit a
salesperson from lobbying on behalf of his or her company and receiving compensation or
commission as part of a bona fide practice of that company provided such compensation
or commission is ordinary and customary in the industry. (RQO 06-34; INQ 12-231) In
general, these commission percentages are awarded based on the profit of the sale in
question.

If the company’s customary and established practice is to engage in profit sharing
depending on the company’s profits or provide task/performance bonuses for their overall
contribution to the success of the company’s business, such arrangement does not appear
to be prohibited by the Lobbying ordinance because it is an established practice and the
distribution/allocation method has already been determined.
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You have advised that Transit X employees are responsible for developing new markets as
commissioned salespersons for the company thereby engaging in lobbying activities to
further this outcome. To that end, their involvement in sales includes engaging in lobbying
efforts on behalf of the company. The company’s policy with regard to the allocation of
performance bonuses and/or profit-sharing includes the allocation of a 3% commission
based on the capitalization value of the transit network in question.

Opinion: Consequently, whether the employee-lobbyist receives profit sharing or a
performance bonus because of the company’s profits, including the profits derived from
the contract award, will depend on the customary, established practice of the company.
You describe an arrangement akin to the commission awarded to traditional salespersons
in other industries which is not prohibited by the County Ethics Code.

This opinion is limited to the facts as you presented them to the Commission on Ethics and is
limited to an interpretation of the County Ethics Code only and is not intended to interpret state
laws. Questions regarding state ethics laws should be addressed to the Florida Commission on
Ethics.

INQs are informal ethics opinions provided by the legal staff after being reviewed and approved
by the Executive Director. INQs deal with opinions previously addressed in public session by
the Ethics Commission or within the plain meaning of the County Ethics Code. RQOs are
opinions provided by the Miami-Dade Commission on Ethics and Public Trust when the subject
matter is of great public importance or where there is insufficient precedent. While these are
informal opinions, covered parties that act contrary to the opinion may be referred to the
Advocate for preliminary review or investigation and may be subject to a formal Complaint filed
with the Commission on Ethics and Public Trust.
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